

Council

To All Members of the Council

Wednesday, 15 September 2021

You are hereby summoned to attend the Meeting of the Council of the Borough of North Tyneside to be held in Chamber - Quadrant, The Silverlink North, Cobalt Business Park, North Tyneside, NE27 0BY at 6.00 pm on Thursday, 23 September 2021 for the transaction of the following business.

Agenda Page(s)
Item

- 1. Apologies
- 2. To receive any Declarations of Interest

You are invited to declare any registerable and/or non-registerable interests in matters appearing on the agenda, and the nature of that interest.

Please complete the Declarations of Interests card available at the meeting and return it to the Democratic Services Officer before leaving the meeting.

You are also invited to disclose any dispensation from the requirement to declare any registerable and/or non-registerable interests that have been granted to you in respect of any matters appearing on the agenda.

- 3. Minutes of the meeting held on 22 July 2021 (previously circulated).
- 4. Return of Councillor Elected Camperdown Ward By-Election 9 3 4 September 2021

To receive the return of Councillor Elected for the Camperdown Ward

Members of the public are welcome to attend this meeting and receive information about it. However, in order to enable the meeting to be held in a Covid-secure manner, places for members of the public are limited. Please email democratic support@northtyneside.gov.uk or call 0191 643 5358 if you wish to attend or require further information.

North Tyneside Council wants to make it easier for you to get hold of the information you need. We are able to provide our documents in alternative formats including Braille, audiotape, large print and alternative languages.

genda <u>Item</u>		Page(s)
	following the By-Election held on 9 September 2021.	
5.	Motions	5 - 8
	Four valid Motions on Notice, signed by at least three Members of the Council, have been received for consideration at this meeting.	
6.	Council Plan Refresh	9 - 18
	To seek Council's approval of an updated Our North Tyneside Council Plan, in light of the findings from engagement with residents and other key stakeholders.	
7.	Chair's Announcements	
	To receive any announcements by the Chair of Council.	
8.	Elected Mayor's Announcements	
	To receive any announcements by the Elected Mayor.	
9.	Questions by Members of the Council	19 - 20
	Three valid questions on notice have been received for a response at this meeting.	
Yours f	aithfully	

Chief Executive

Agenda Item 4

North Tyneside Council Report to Council 23 September 2021

Title: Return of Councillor Elected – Camperdown Ward Byelection 9 September 2021

WARD	NAME
Camperdown	Tracy Hallway



North Tyneside Council Report to Council 23 September 2021

Title: Motions

Notice has been received of the following motions from Members of the Council to be put to the Council meeting.

1. Motion signed by Councillors S Brockbank, L Bartoli and L Bones

Motion to North Tyneside Council – support for refugees and service personnel.

The horror of the Taliban taking over Afghanistan remains writ large in all our minds – and rightly so.

The oppression of groups ranging from women to other faith groups, from the LGBTQ community to those who have served the people in a military role, is a human crisis. There are many differing views as to whether it was right to withdraw from this troubled theatre of war, but as local politicians it is incumbent on us to ensure that North Tyneside Council has made all preparations to welcome those, who have been assessed by Her Majesty's Government as needing our protection and ensure that they have access to services.

Equally, the impact on the heroic service personnel who have protected and, in sad cases, died for the cause of freedom in Afghanistan must be considered and the Council must ensure that the bravery shown is reflected in the speed and quality of the service that our military can expect.

We call on the Elected Mayor and Cabinet to:

- 1. Re-assure Council and residents that all preparations have been made to accommodate refugees.
- 2. Re-assure Council that service personnel will be at the front of any queue of service provision.
- 3. Provide Council with a clear plan as to how arrangements will be monitored and reviewed.

2. Motion signed by Councillors A Newman, G Bell, and C Burdis

North Tyneside Council notes:

- Veterans' mental health continues to be an issue with many veterans suffering from a number complex issues including PTSD.
- Local authorities are often best placed to give aid to the armed forces community living in their areas.
- North Tyneside council as an excellent record of pioneering initiatives to support our armed forces community, however without dedicated funding the authority is limited in what it can provide.

North Tyneside council calls upon the Mayor to:

 write to both the chancellor Rishi Sunak and the minister for veterans affairs Leo Docherty to request that they supply ringfenced funding to help support local services dedicated to our armed forces personnel

3. Motion signed by Councillors W Samuel, A McMullen and S Day

Council notes:

- Social care spending nationally currently accounts for nearly half of all spending in councils nationally.
- The Conservative government has cut over £127 million from North
 Tyneside's council's budget and transferred responsibility for paying for social
 care to local residents and businesses. With the council tax rises in the past
 few years being as a result and mainly made up of the social care precept.
- Government contribution to council spending has gone down from 50% to 10% in the past 8 years with the government instead placing the burden on residents and businesses.
- Nationally the Conservatives have left 1.6 million elderly and disabled people without the help they need.

North Tyneside council believes:

- The governments 'plan' for social care would force the burden for paying onto the low paid and young working population.
- The conservative government's plan would result in a tax on jobs through employers NI contribution.
- The plan hammers those low paid working in social care at the same time as facing a cut in Universal Credit, they'll also face the biggest burden from the national insurance increase while the government once again fails to improve their often poor terms and conditions.

North Tyneside council calls upon the Mayor to:

 Write to the Chancellor of the Exchequer to raise the funds via taxes or other routes which share the burden more equitably across society and fairy reflect ability to pay.

4. Motion signed by Councillors H Johnson, C Johnson and K Clark

North Tyneside Council Notes that:

- The process of bringing in Universal Credit under a Tory government has been chaotic and confusing for the residents of North Tyneside.
- That the increase of £20 to Universal Credit since the start of the Coronavirus pandemic has helped the poorest residents in North Tyneside.
- Almost 40% of Universal Credit claimants are in work.

North Tyneside Council believes that:

- The government should listen to calls from the Labour Party to stop these plans and make the £20 uplift to Universal Credit permanent.
- Some of the poorest residents in North Tyneside will be the most affected by these changes, leaving many unable to afford to eat or heat their homes over winter.
- These changes will lead to an increase in the use of food banks as families struggle to afford food.

North Tyneside Council calls upon the Mayor to:

- Write to the Secretary of State for Work and Pensions asking them to reconsider these changes given the affect they will have on residents in North Tyneside.
- Call on the government to listen to the Labour Party and other organisations and make the £20 uplift to Universal Credit permanent.

North Tyneside Council Report to Council

Date: 23 September 2021

Title: Council Plan Refresh

Portfolio(s): Deputy Mayor Cabinet Member: Cllr Carl

Johnson

Report from Service

Corporate Strategy and Customer Service

Area:

Responsible Officer: Jackie Laughton (Tel: 0191 643 7075)

Wards affected: All

PART 1

1.1 Executive Summary:

This report seeks Council's approval of an updated Our North Tyneside Council Plan, in light of the findings from engagement with residents and other key stakeholders. This engagement was undertaken in accordance with the approach agreed by Cabinet on 28 June 2021.

1.2 Recommendation:

It is recommended that Council approve the updated Our North Tyneside Council Plan as set out in Appendix 2.

1.3 Forward Plan:

Twenty-eight days notice of this report has been given and it first appeared on the Forward Plan that was published on 18 June 2021.

1.4 Council Plan and Policy Framework

This report sets out the proposed updated 2021-2025 Our North Tyneside Plan. The Council Plan is a 'local choice' plan under the Budget and Policy Framework as set out in the Council's Constitution.

1.5 Information:

1.5.1 Background

- 1.5.2 The previous Our North Tyneside Council Plan 2020-2024 was approved by full Council on 18 February 2021. Following the Mayoral election on 6 May 2021 the Council Plan needed to be updated to reflect the policy priorities of the incoming administration. As per the Council's Budget and Policy Framework, as set out in the Council Constitution, the Council Plan requires final approval by full Council.
- 1.5.3 At its meeting on 28 June 2021 Cabinet approved a plan for internal and external engagement on the initial proposals for an updated Council Plan. Engagement began on Friday 2 July 2021 and concluded on 15 August (including consideration by the Overview, Scrutiny and Policy Development Committee at its meeting on 7 July and by its sub-group on 27 July).
- 1.5.4 Interim findings from the engagement process were considered by Cabinet on 2 August, where it approved the updated Our North Tyneside Council Plan, subject to consideration of any supplementary information received as a result of the ongoing engagement process. Cabinet also authorised the Deputy Mayor to agree any final changes to the Our North Tyneside Plan, in the light of any further responses received to consultation after 2 August and the end of the engagement process. The updated Our North Tyneside Council Plan is shown in Appendix 1 for approval by Council.

1.5.5 Our North Tyneside Council Plan 2021-24 Engagement

- 1.5.6 In accordance with the engagement plan agreed by Cabinet in June, the following has been undertaken:
 - publication of information about Cabinet's initial Council Plan proposals from the end of June and throughout July. This has been achieved online via the Council's website and at front line locations including the Community Conversation corners in the four Customer First Centres, where these have been available in line with Covid-19 restrictions. Feedback from residents and others is in the process of being gathered via a questionnaire either on-line or at these front-line locations (671 responses were received with, as shown in Appendix 2, the vast majority agreeing with the Council Plan proposals). The engagement process was supported by communications activity via the media, the Authority's website and social media (reaching 68,000 people) to raise awareness of opportunities to take part; and by face-to-face engagement through the Big Community Conversation which engaged 815 people;
 - the views of Overview, Scrutiny and Policy Development Committee were sought on 7 July and again from its sub-group on 27 July; their feedback is outlined in Appendix 2.
 - in addition to the opportunity to respond to the questionnaire, engagement sessions were offered to the following internal and external stakeholder groups:
 - staff
 - businesses
 - o schools
 - o children and young people
 - trade unions
 - North Tyneside Strategic Partnership

- older people
- o carers
- Black, Asian and other Minority Ethnic Communities Task Force
- low income households
- groups representing people with protected characteristics under the Equality Act 2010.
- 1.5.7 A summary of the findings from the engagement process are shown in Appendix 2.

1.6 Decision options:

The following decision options are available for consideration by Council.

Option 1

To approve the recommendation as set out in paragraph 1.2 above

Option 2

To not approve the recommendation as set out in paragraph 1.2 above

Option 1 is the recommended option.

1.7 Reasons for recommended option:

Option 1 is recommended for the following reason:

- The contents of the updated Council Plan have been informed by the findings of a comprehensive engagement approach delivered in line with Covid-19 restrictions
- Approval of the updated Council Plan will inform the Council's budget setting process.

1.8 Appendices:

Appendix 1: Our North Tyneside Council Plan Engagement Findings Appendix 2: Updated Our North Tyneside Council Plan 2021-2025

1.9 Contact officers:

Jackie Laughton, Head of Corporate Strategy and Customer Service, tel. (0191) 643 7075

Pam Colby, Senor Manager Policy Performance and Research, tel. (0191) 643 7252 Claire Emmerson, Senior Manager Financial Strategy and Planning, tel. (0191) 643 8109

1.10 Background information:

The following background papers/information have been used in the compilation of this report and are available at the office of the author:

- (1) Council Plan Refresh report to Cabinet on 28 June 2021
- (2) Council Plan Refresh report to Cabinet on 2 August 2021

(3) <u>Council Plan Refresh</u> report to Overview, Scrutiny and Policy Development Committee

PART 2 - COMPLIANCE WITH PRINCIPLES OF DECISION MAKING

2.1 Finance and other resources

2.1.1 The Authority's Medium-Term Financial Strategy will be reviewed and aligned to the revised Our North Tyneside Plan. Any financial impact of delivering the priorities outlined in the Plan will be considered as part of the Financial Planning and Budget Process and Budget-setting for 2022/23.

2.2 Legal

The Council has agreed that the Council Plan is part of the policy framework (as a "local choice" plan) and as such it must be agreed in accordance with the rules of procedure relating to the Budget and Policy Framework (Part 4.7 of the Authority's Constitution).

2.3 Consultation/community engagement

2.3.1 Internal Consultation

Consultation has been carried out with the Elected Mayor, Cabinet and Senior Leadership Team. The proposals have been scrutinised as set out in the Authority's Constitution and Budget and Policy Framework Procedure rules.

2.3.2 External Consultation/Engagement

The engagement approach has been conducted in accordance with the process set out in paragraphs 1.5.5 to 1.5.7 of this report.

2.4 Human rights

2.4.1 There are no human rights implications from this report.

2.5 Equalities and diversity

2.5.1 In undertaking the process for the refresh of the Council Plan the Authority's aim has at all times been to secure compliance with its responsibilities under the Equality Act 2010 and in particular the Public Sector Equality Duty under that Act. An Equality Impact Assessment was carried out on the engagement approach, with the aim of removing or minimising any disadvantage for people wishing to take part in the engagement activity. The Authority has made direct contact with groups representing people with protected characteristics under the Equality Act 2010 to encourage participation and provide engagement in a manner that will meet their needs.

2.6 Risk management

2.6.1 Relevant risks have been identified regarding this report, they are currently held on strategic and corporate risk registers and are being reviewed and managed as part of the Authority's normal risk management process.

2.7 Crime and disorder

2.7.1 The proposals for the refreshed Our North Tyneside Council Plan include a priority theme to build a secure North Tyneside, and in particular to focus on anti-social behaviour.

2.8 Environment and sustainability

2.8.1 The proposals for the refreshed Our North Tyneside Council Plan include a priority theme to build a green North Tyneside.

PART 3 - SIGN OFF

•	Chief Executive	Х
•	Head(s) of Service	X
•	Mayor/Cabinet Member(s)	Х

•	Chief Finance Officer	Х

•	Monitoring Officer	Χ

Appendix 1: Updated Our North Tyneside Council Plan 2021-2025

The Council Plan has a vision of building a better North Tyneside looking to the future. Throughout all that the Council does, there will be a clear focus on listening to and working with residents, businesses, the community and voluntary sector and all other stakeholders to ensure that things are delivered in partnership and in line with the different needs of the borough.

The Council Plan future vision is of a North Tyneside in the following five themes:

- thriving
- family-friendly
- caring
- secure
- green

Each of these five themes has a clear set of policy priorities and outcomes as set out below

A thriving North Tyneside

- We will regenerate the high streets of North Shields and Wallsend, and in addition
 to the Master Plan for North Shields, we will bring forward Master Plans for
 Wallsend and Whitley Bay town centre areas. We will also bring investment and
 improvements to the North West area of the borough and ensure that regeneration
 delivers ambition, opportunity and benefits for all of our residents;
- We will bring more good quality jobs to North Tyneside by helping local businesses to sustain and grow, making it attractive for new businesses to set up or relocate in the borough;
- We will invest in adult education and to support apprenticeships to make sure people have the right skills for the job;
- We will keep our libraries and leisure centres open as part of a vibrant range of cultural and sporting activities to support the health and wellbeing of our residents;
- We will continue to be the destination of choice for visitors through the promotion of North Tyneside's award-winning parks, beaches, festivals and seasonal activities;
- We will reduce the number of derelict properties across the borough; and
- We will review how the council purchases and contracts for goods and services to maximise value for money, social value and environmental sustainability.

A family-friendly North Tyneside

- We will support local schools, making sure all children have access to a highquality education with opportunities to catch up where needed after the pandemic;
- We will provide outstanding children's social care services, events and facilities so North Tyneside is a great place for family life; and

• We will ensure all children are ready for school and that schools have an inclusive approach so that all of our children and young people have the best start in life.

A caring North Tyneside

- We will provide great care to all who need it, with extra support available all the way through to the end of the pandemic;
- We will work with the care provision sector to improve the working conditions of care workers;
- People will be cared for, protected and supported if they become vulnerable, including if they become homeless;
- We will support local community groups, carers and young carers and the essential work they do; and
- We will work to reduce inequality, eliminate discrimination and ensure the social rights of the people of North Tyneside are key to council decision making.

A secure North Tyneside

- Council wardens will work in partnership with Northumbria Police to prevent and tackle all forms of antisocial behaviour:
- We will invest an additional £2m per year on fixing our roads and pavements;
- We will maintain the Council Tax support scheme that cuts bills for thousands of low income households across North Tyneside;
- We will tackle health and socio-economic inequalities across the borough including through our Poverty Intervention Fund to tackle food poverty; and
- We will provide 5000 affordable homes.

A green North Tyneside

- We will keep increasing the amount of waste that can be recycled and introduce food waste collections and deposit return schemes:
- Council environmental hit squads will crack down on littering;
- We will secure funding to help low income households to install low-carbon heating;
- We will increase opportunities for safe walking and cycling, including providing a segregated cycleway at the coast; and
- We will publish an action plan of the steps we will take and the national investment we will seek to make North Tyneside carbon net-zero by 2030.

Appendix 2: Our North Tyneside Council Plan Engagement Findings

Engagement on the Our North Tyneside Council Plan priorities ran from 2 July- 15 August 2021. The engagement process included a range of approaches including internal and external stakeholder engagement sessions and an on-line questionnaire. It was promoted through: our partners (including AgeUK, VODA and Health Watch), in our libraries and North Tyneside Living housing schemes, the Authority's social media channels (with around 68,000 people reached and around 4,700 clicks on Facebook and over 12,000 engagements on Twitter) and out and about engagement across the borough which resulted in 815 conversations.

A summary of the feedback received is provided below.

Face to face engagement

Overview, Scrutiny and Policy Development Committee

At its meeting on 7 July, the Committee discussed how to ensure that the Plan was presented in a user friendly way and also to how to approach cross cutting themes such as the climate emergency, and addressing inequalities (including health and life expectancy rates) across the whole of the Council. The Committee also discussed the approach to engagement and they agreed to set up a sub-group to consider the Plan proposals in the context of the feedback received.

The sub-group meet on 27 July and noted the feedback received from residents and other stakeholders. They welcomed the proposed themes in the Plan and suggested the following for consideration

- referencing public transport, pedestrians and car users where appropriate as well as cycling
- including a stronger reference to the importance of improving customer service across the Council

The **North Tyneside Strategic Partnership** has had initial discussions on the high-level themes of the Council Plan and the opportunity for further discussion and engagement has been offered. There was support for the priorities in the plan.

Trades Unions, whose comments focused on care workers, carers and addressing digital exclusion as part of the work on health and socio-economic inequalities.

North Tyneside Youth Council, who discussed all of the themes, highlighting the importance of the 'catching up' priority and giving young people the experience of employment before they leave school, the provision of youth clubs especially in deprived areas, equal access to council services and activities, support for young carers, improved communication around recycling and additional training for council wardens. They also suggested on-going engagement on cycle-way proposals.

The BAME Taskforce felt the plan was ambitious and welcomed the commitment to tackling inequalities.

North Tyneside Residents Panel highlighted the importance of small businesses in the plan. They also raised the need for better communications around activities which would help create a more vibrant borough. The poverty proofing initiatives and the measures to help the vulnerable, and more deprived were welcomed, as was the focus on reducing

inequality. They confirmed that tackling anti-social behaviour continues to be a priority. The group wanted to see more mixed housing developments, but questioned what affordable really meant. Green issues were considered a priority that should be considered at all times, with the possibility of solar panels on all new developments. They asked that electric cars be considered as part of the delivery of the plan. The group wanted an awareness, warning approach to littering with fines to those who did not comply. Finally, there was seen to be a need for more youth clubs and action on dog fouling.

North Tyneside Business Forum, who found the plan positive and reassuring, but would like to see more on support for business start-up and growth, including creating the right infrastructure for businesses to be able to flourish.

On-line

671 responses were received. Of these:

- 74% strongly agree/agree with the proposed Our North Tyneside Priorities (11% disagree)
- 82% strongly agree/agree with the proposed thriving North Tyneside priorities (8% disagree)
- 83% strongly agree/agree with those for a family friendly North Tyneside (6% disagree)
- 83% strongly agree/agree with the caring North Tyneside priorities (5% disagree)
- 79% strongly agree/agree with the secure North Tyneside priorities (11% disagree)
- 77% strongly agree/agree with the green North Tyneside priorities (13% disagree).

The following feedback was also received on each theme.

- Thriving 330 comments received. People agreed that they are keen to see regeneration and improvements in all parts of the borough, high levels of occupancy on easy to access high streets and libraries being used to their full potential. They also highlighted their agreement with the focus on adult education, jobs, the removal of derelict buildings and the importance of our parks and leisure spaces.
- Family-friendly 228 comments. People agreed that support for schools is a priority, highlighting investment in school buildings; the support and development of staff; curricula and extra curricula activities; sufficiency of pupil places in local schools; and resourcing of school meals, mental health support for pupils and catch up following the impact of the Covid-19 pandemic. The importance of support and inclusion of children with special educational needs and disabilities was highlighted, as was provision of early years support, childcare, after school clubs, youth clubs and activities, and outdoor spaces to play including playgrounds. Travel to school, in terms of independent and active travel, was also a focus, as was access to affordable uniforms.
- Caring 190 comments. There was agreement with the emphasis on supporting care providers, carers and the homeless. People asked for details of how the policy priorities and outcomes will be achieved.
- Secure 309 comments. People agreed with the development of affordable homes but want to ensure they are truly affordable and that the infrastructure is in place to support them. They would also like to see more social housing and new housing

being built on brownfield sites. They agreed with the need to address anti-social behaviour effectively and to continue to invest in our roads and pavements.

 Green – 338 comments. There was particular support for recycling, action to reduce littering and safe walking. There were mixed views on cycling, most were in favour of more cycle routes but thought choosing the right locations was important, others wanted to see more support for people who are walking or using their cars. The importance of biodiversity and green spaces was highlighted as a priority as was a desire to see an increase in electric charging points and encouragement for the use of public transport or active travel.

In addition, participants were keen to learn more about the detail behind the priorities and how they will be delivered and resourced. There was support for all of the priorities to be delivered in an environmentally sustainable and inclusive but equitable way. The use of simpler language in some parts of the plan was also requested.

North Tyneside Council Report to Council 23 September 2021

Title: Questions by Members of the Council

Notice has been received of the following questions from Members of the Council to be put to the Council meeting.

1. Question to the Elected Mayor by Councillor Karen Clark

The Social Metrics Commission reported that 4.5 million people are experiencing the deepest levels of poverty in the UK Can the Mayor confirm North Tyneside council fully supports the North of Tyne poverty truth commission?

2. Question to the Elected Mayor by Councillor Andy Newman

Will the Mayor join me as the Armed forces champion for NTC in raising the concerns of the humanitarian crisis in Afghanistan with HM Government and wills she also write to the Home Secretary outlining out support for the evacuation of British citizens and those who assisted Allied forces in Afghanistan?

3. Question to the Elected Mayor by Councillor Linda Arkley

The Cabinet approved an ambitious plan to transform North Shields and the Fish Quay on Monday 25th January 2021.

It outlined eight separate projects for the town centre and Fish Quay. These include enhancing the appearance of key areas, creating a new transport hub, and interchange and town square to host various events. A new cultural quarter based around Howard Street and Riverside walkway linking the town centre to the Fish Quay.

There are also proposals for high-quality housing at key locations and moving the North Shields ferry to Western Quay.

Cabinet approved the next stops to: -

- Refining a Delivery Plan for the masterplan which will set out the timing and funding or the projects contained in the masterplan.
- Progress the delivery of those schemes contained in the masterplan for which there is funding has been secured.
- Securing external funding for those elements of the masterplan for which funding is not currently in place.

Would the Elected Mayor provide the Council with an update on all aspects of the North Shields Masterplan.

Would she also provide a financial break down of grants, Funding, Sales, Investment received and is there a shortfall of funding for the North Shields Master plan?